
 

Agenda No. 2017–18 September 25, 2017 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2017–18 

REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

PRELIMINARY MEETINGS 

5:30 p.m. Work Session – Interior Gas Utility Report 

6:10 p.m. Work Session – Arcadis Team, FNSB/EAFB Regional Growth Plan 

 
It is the mission of the City of Fairbanks to provide essential services to the residents of the City that 

increase the desirability of the City as a place to live, work, and visit.  Essential services include not just 

the visible activities of police, fire, and public works employees, but also the creation and maintenance of 

community infrastructure, promotion of safe housing and construction standards, and the sound 

management of community assets.   

 
REGULAR MEETING 

7:00 P.M. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for 

Public Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five minutes.  Any person wishing to 
speak needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards 
of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should 
be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, kindly silence all cell 
phones and electronic devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member 
so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General 
Agenda.  

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES  

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 1 of 144



 

Agenda No. 2017–18 September 25, 2017 Page 2 of 3 

7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

 a) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 
following Marijuana License Application for Renewal.  Public Testimony 
will be taken and limited to five minutes.   

 
Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Premises Address 

10958 Green Life Supply, LLC 
Standard Marijuana 
Cultivation Facility 

Green Life Supply, LLC 511 30th Avenue 

 
 b) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 

following application for a new Retail Marijuana Store License.  Public 
Testimony will be taken and limited to five minutes.   

 
Type: Retail Marijuana Store, License #11927 
DBA: Green Life Supply, LLC 
Licensee/Applicant: Green Life Supply, LLC 
Physical Location: 511 30th Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
  a) Housing & Homeless Coordinator Report 
 
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

 a) Ordinance No. 6060 – An Ordinance to Provide a Stipend and Resolutions 
to Residents and Businesses with Drinking Water Contamination by 
Perfluorinated Compounds (PFCs).  Introduced by Council Members 
Pruhs and Rogers.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
 b) Ordinance No. 6061 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code 

Section 70-321 Regarding Responsibility for Removal of Snow and Ice 
from Sidewalks and Moving Snow from Private Property onto a Street or 
Sidewalk.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.  SECOND READING AND 
PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4808 – A Resolution Amending the City Schedule of Fees 
and Charges for Services Relating to Snow Removal.  Introduced by 
Mayor Matherly.   

 
*b) Resolution No. 4809 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 

Accept Funds from the Alaska Highway Safety Office for FFY2018 DUI 
Traffic Enforcement Unit.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.   

 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 2 of 144



 

Agenda No. 2017–18 September 25, 2017 Page 3 of 3 

*c) Resolution No. 4810 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 
Accept Funds from the Alaska Division of Homeland Security for the 
FFY2017 Emergency Management Performance Grant.  Introduced by 
Mayor Matherly.   

 
*d) Resolution No. 4811 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 

Accept Funds from the Alaska Division of Homeland Security for the 
FFY2017 State Homeland Security Program.  Introduced by Mayor 
Matherly.   

 
*e) Ordinance No. 6062 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code 

Sec. 2-119 Order of Business; Sec. 2-121 Speaking, recognition; and Sec. 
2-122 Voting.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly and Council Member Bagwill.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT)  
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
 *a) Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes of July 12, 2017 
 
 *b) Board of Plumber Examiner Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2017 
 
 *c) Reappointments to the Board of Plumber Examiners 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 *a) Approval of Election Judges for the 2017 Municipal Election 
 
 
15. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
  a) Gavora, Inc. v. City of Fairbanks 4FA-16-01898CI:  Settlement Proposals 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 3 of 144



City of Fairbanks Office of the City Clerk 

800 Cushman Street Farrbanks,AI< 99701 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Jim Matherly and City Council Members 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk @ 
SUBJECT: Marijuana License Renewal 

DATE: September 19, 2017 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 
following marijuana license renewal: 

Lie.# DBA 

10958 1 Green Life Supply, LLC 

License Type 

Standard Marijuana 
Cultivation Facility 

Licensee Premises Address 

Green Life Supply, LLC 511 3oth Avenue 

Pursuant to 3 AAC 306.060, the Council may determine whether to protest marijuana license 
renewals after holding a public hearing. The Marijuana Control Board (MCB) will uphold a 
local government protest and deny an application for a marijuana establishment license unless 
the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, capricious, and unreasonable. The 60-day deadline 
for response to AMCO on the above-listed renewal is October 13, 2017. 

At the MCB meeting on May 15, 2017, the board delegated Director Erika McConnell the 
authority to approve renewal applications with no protests, objections, or notices of violation. 
However, if a timely protest or objection is filed for an application, or if any notices of violation 
have been issued for a license, the board will consider the application. In those situations, a 
temporary license will be issued pending board consideration. 

Per the Council's request, the Police Department has included a call report for the location 
(attached); however, Chief Jewkes is not recommending a protest the renewal. 

There are no departmental protests to the above-listed mariiuana license renewal. Please 
contact me if you need any further information. 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 4 of 144



Report# 

17001414 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY 
GREEN LIFE SUPPLY CO. 511 30th Avenue 

09/19/2016 - 09/19/2017 

Prime 
Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. 

DESK RPT 

Close Time 

05/02/2017 15:13:51 05/02/2017 15:09 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 511 THIRTIETH AVE 

12/10/2016 20:46 URGENT WELFARE 511 THIRTIETH AVE 030 NRP 12/10/2016 21:01:15 

Total Number of Events Listed: 2 

Report Generated: 09/20/2017 09:19:29 I User ID: 1225 

\Vecc-app\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory _EventUstWithReportNumbers Page 1 of 1 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 5 of 144



MEMORANDUM 

City of Fairbanks Clerk's Office 

TO: Mayor Jim Matherly 
City Council Members 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk 

D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: Application for New Retail Marijuana Store License 

DATE: September 19, 2017 

Attached you will find a notification from the Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) of 
an application for a new Retail Marijuana Store License and additional information for the 
following applicant: 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 
Physical Location: 

11927 
Retail Marijuana Store 
Green Life Supply, LLC 
Green Life Supply, LLC 
511 30th Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

Pursuant to 3 AAC 306.060, the Council may file a protest on a new marijuana establishment 
license within 60 days of receipt of application notice from AMCO; the 60-day deadline for the 
City's response is October 23, 2017. 

A notice of the date, time and place of the public hearing has been mailed to all property owners 
within 500 feet of the marijuana establishment, and this public hearing will be advertised in the 
Fairbanks Daily News Miner on September 22, 2017. 

The Building and Fire Departments recommend protesting this license until a Certificate of 
Occupancy is issued. There are no other departmental obiections to the issuance of the 
license. 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 6 of 144



City of Fairbanks 
800 Cushman Street Fairbanks,A.K 99701 

Office of the City Clerk 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

ALCOHOL AND MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

MARIJUANA LICENSE RESPONSE FORM 

TO:~ANCE DEPARTMENT 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

0 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

DATE: 08/24/2017 

RE: MARIJUANA LICENSE ACTION -NEW RETAIL LICENSE APPLICATION 

DATE NOTICE RECEIVED AT CLERKS OFFICE: 08/24/2017 (60DAYDUEDATE 10/23/2017} 

DATE RESPONSE DUE: ~9/19/2017! for City Council Meeting of 09/25/2017 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 

11927 
Retail Marijuana Store 
Green Life Supply, LLC 
Green Life Supply, LLC 

Physical Location: 511 30th Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

Corp/LLC Agent: Mailing Address Phone 

Green Life Supply, LLC 
863 6th Avenue 

907-795-0515 
Fairbanks,A.K 99701 

Member/Officer/ Affiliate: Mailing Address 

Dayton Maccallum 2375 Wildflower Lane 
North Pole, AK. 99705 

Nathan Davis 863 6th Avenue 
Fairbanks,A.K 99701 

Jameson Johnson 525 Sprucewood Road 
Fairbanks,A.K 99709 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

D NOPROTEST: 
COMMENTS 

Date and State of Ltd Good 
Partner/Corp standine:? 

08/15/2016 -Alaska Yes 

Phone Title/Shares (%) 

907-322-5310 Member/IO% 

907-795-0515 Member/SO% 

907-350-8199 Member/IO% 

~ PROTEST 
REASONS: 

~,dr//--/c~~ ~_;-~vi~~ 
/~-5<Uk"Z/ 

DEPARTMENTSIGNEE: ~ 
ignature) 

l~A'!K /Pc &d:P~7c~ 
(Printed Name) 

NOTE: THIS COMPLETED FORM MUST BE RETURNED TO THE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
BY THE DATE INDICATED ABOVE. YOU MAY E-MAIL OR FAX (459-6710) THE FORM. 

rrvon Jl.t. V1i' .t.NV OTTli'Ci:TTON'Ci: ""II nTTD Oli'li'T('Ji' AT .4.C:O ,;,.,., ... TUA~ vnn 
City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 7 of 144



City of Fairbanks 
800 Cushman Street Fairbanks,AIC 99701 

Office of the City Clerk 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

ALCOHOL AND MARUUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

MARIJUANA LICENSE RESPONSE FORM 

TO: 0 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
0 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
181 FIRE DEPARTMENT 
0 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

DATE: 08/24/2017 

RE: MARIJUANA LICENSE ACTION - NEW RETAIL LICENSE APPLICATION 

DATE NOTICE RECEIVED AT CLERKS OFFICE: 08/24/2017 (6oDAY DUE DATE 1Qn3/2Ql7} 

DATE RESPONSE DUE: N/lMtl~ for City Council Meeting of 09/25/2017 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 

11927 
................. -Stue .~.,.~~ .. 
Green Life Supply, LLC 
Green Life Supply, LLC 

Physical Location: 511 30th Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

Corp/LLC Agent: Mailing Address Phone 

Green Life Supply, LLC 863 6th Avenue 907-795-0515 Fairbanks,AIC 99701 

Member/Officer/Affiliate: Mailing Address 

Dayton MecCallum 2375 Wildflower Lane 
North Pole, AK 99705 

Nathan Davis 863 6th Avenue 
Fairbanks,AIC 99701 

Jameson Johnson 525 Sprucewood Road 
Fairbanks,AIC 99709 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

D NO PROTEST: 
COMMENTS 

181 PROTEST 

Date and State of Ltd Good 
Partner/Coro standin2? 

08/15/2016 - Alaska Yes 

Phone Title/Shares (%) 

907-322-5310 Member/I 00/o 

907-795-0515 Member/BO% 

907-350-8199 Member/IO% 

REASONS:Fire Department recommends protest until final inspections have been 
completed and the Certificate of Occupancy is issued by the Building Department. 

DEPARTMENTSIGNEE: ~41&+-~ ~ 
/(signature) (Printed Name) 

NOTE: TIDS COMPLETED FORM MUST BE RETURNED TO THE CITY CLERK'S OffiCE 
BY THE DATE INDICATED ABOVE. YOU MAY E-MAIL OR FAX (4S9-6710) THE FORM. 

If YOU HA VE ANY QUESTIONS CALL OUR OFFICE AT 4S9-6774. THANK YOU. 
City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 8 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 9 of 144



MITCHELL EXPY

RAMP-Fr: To:

HUGHES AVE

THIRTIETH AVE

ALLEY

R/
W

S CUSHMAN ST EXT

S CUSHMAN ST

TWENTY-EIGHTH AVE

THIRTY-SECOND AVE

THIRTY-FIRST AVE

ROMANS' WAY

OLD RICHARDSON HWY

BJ
ER

RE
MA

RK
 S

T

RA
MP

-Fr
: T

o: RAMP-Fr: To:
MITCHELL EXPY

500' Buffer
511 30th Ave
Fairbanks Native Assoc.
Building Outlines (2012)

1 = 2500


Image courtesy of: Pictometry

Fairbanks North Star Borough
Generic Report

The Fairbanks North Star Borough does not warrant the accuracy of maps or data provided, nor their suitability for any particular application. There may be errors in the data.

500' Buffer and Sensitive Use Map
Green Life Supply, LLC

Marijuana License - New - #11927
Retail Store

0 500250 Feet

Johnson
O'Malley

#*
~ 457 ft

PAN# 0087424
Printed on: 08/30/2017

Property Information for PAN#: 0087424
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: REES, LOT: 01A
OWNER: Ccm Investments Llc
SITUS ADDRESS: 511 Thirtieth Ave
ZONING: LI (100%)
COMMUNITY PLANNING PERMITS:
Conditional Use: 20160015
Conditional Use: 20160016
Variance: 19950013
Variance: 19990002
Zoning: 17542

#*
~ 4

63
 ft

Ralph
Perdue
Center

Fairbanks Native
Association

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 10 of 144



MITCHELL EXPY

BIDWILL AVE

LE
AS

UR
E 

ST

RA
MP

-Fr
: T

o:

AK_ROUTE_2

THIRTIETH AVE

ALLEY

S CUSHMAN ST

ME
RC

IE
R 

ST

S C
US

HM
AN

 S
T E

XT

R/
W

RICHARDSON HWY

ROMANS' WAY

THIRTY-SECOND AVE

OLD RICHARDSON HWY

MITCHELL EXPY

AK_ROUTE_2

RAMP-Fr: To:

RAMP-Fr: To:

RAMP-Fr: To:

R/W

GU-1

LI

MF

GC

GC

LI

LC

511 30th Ave
Building Outlines (2012)

Zoning

GC GU-1 LC LI MF

1 = 4000


Image courtesy of: Pictometry

Fairbanks North Star Borough
Generic Report

The Fairbanks North Star Borough does not warrant the accuracy of maps or data provided, nor their suitability for any particular application. There may be errors in the data.

Proximity and Zoning Map
Green Life Supply, LLC

Marijuana License - New - #11927
Retail Store

0 500250 Feet

PAN# 0087424
Printed on: 08/30/2017

Property Information for PAN#: 0087424
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: REES, LOT: 01A
OWNER: Ccm Investments Llc
SITUS ADDRESS: 511 Thirtieth Ave
ZONING: LI (100%)
COMMUNITY PLANNING PERMITS:
Conditional Use: 20160015
Conditional Use: 20160016
Variance: 19950013
Variance: 19990002
Zoning: 17542

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 11 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 12 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 13 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 14 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 15 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 16 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 17 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 18 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 19 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 20 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 21 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 22 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 23 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 24 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 25 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 26 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 27 of 144



Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Development

Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office
License #11927

Initiating License Application
1/19/2017 10:19:54 AM

Licensee #1

Licensee Type:  Entity

Alaska Entity Number:  10040751

Alaska Entity Name:  Green Life Supply, LLC

Phone Number:  907-795-0515

Email Address:  greenlifealaska@gmail.com

Mailing Address:  863 6th ave.
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

Affiliate #1

Licensee Type:  Individual

Name:  Dayton MacCallum

Phone Number:  907-322-5310

Email Address:  dmaccustoms@yahoo.com

Mailing Address:  2375 Wildflower Ln.
North Pole, AK 99705
UNITED STATES

Affiliate #2

Licensee Type:  Individual

Name:  Nathan Davis

Phone Number:  907-795-0515

Email Address:  greenlifealaska@gmail.com

Mailing Address:  863 6th ave.
fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

Affiliate #3

Licensee Type:  Individual

Name:  Jameson Johnson

Phone Number:  907-350-8199

Email Address:  kodiak.johnson@yahoo.com

Mailing Address:  525 Sprucewood Rd.
Fairbanks, AK 99709
UNITED STATES

License Number:  11927

License Status:  New

License Type:  Retail Marijuana Store

Doing Business As:  GREEN LIFE SUPPLY LLC

Business License Number:  1041284

Designated Licensee:  Nathan Davis

Email Address:  greenlifealaska@gmail.com

Local Government:  Fairbanks (City of)

Community Council:  

Latitude, Longitude:  64.819854, -147.712815

Physical Address:  511 30th ave.
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 28 of 144



·----

· .. ~. 

What is this form? 

Alaska Marijuana Cont rol Board 

550 W 7th A e ue Su,te 1600 
Ancnorage. AK 9950 

rnanjuana.licens,ng@alaska gov 
https./f.vww.comrnerce.alaska govlwebiamco 

Phore 907 269.0350 

Cover Sheet for ,Marijuana Establ ishment Applications 

This cover sheet must be completed and submitted any time a document. payment, or other marijuana establishment application item is 
emailed , mailed. or hand-delivered to AMCO's main office . 

.. ..... ... 
___:::.•-1.: .... : ....... i.! ..... 5~ ... -

Section 1 - Establishment Information 

Enter information for the business seeking to be licensed. as identified on the license application. 

........... -u -----

Licensee: Green Life Supply. LLC License Number: 11927 

License Type: ! Retail Marijuana Store 
- - ------ -- - ---

Doing Business As: GREEN LIFE SUPPLY LLC 
1 Physical Address : 511 30th ave. 

City: Fairbanks State: AK Zip Code: 99701 
-------~--

Designated Nathan Davis 
Licensee: 

Email Address: greenlifealaska@gmail.com 

Section 2 - Attached Items 

List all documents. payments, and other items that are being submitted along with th is page. 

Attached Items: 

Received Date: 

\ o~ -2-

- - - - - ----- - - - --·---- - -

OFFICE USE ONL Y 

Payment Submitted Y/N: Transaction#: 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 29 of 144



Alaska Divis ion of Corporat ions, Business and Pro fessional Licensing 

De:gartment of Commerce, Communi:cy, and Economic Develo:gment 

Division of Corporations, Business and Professional 
Licensing 

State of Alaska > Commerce -. Corporations, Business, & Professional Licensing > Corporations Search 

NAivIE(S) 
Type Name 

Legal Name Green Life Supply, LLC 

ENTITY D ETAILS 

Entity Type: Limited Liabi lity Company 

Entity # : 10040751 

Status: Good Standing 

AK Formed Date : 8/15/2016 

Duration/Expiration: Perpetual 

Home State: ALASKA 

Next Biennial Report Due: 1/2/2018 

Entity Mailing Address: 863 6TH AVE, FAIRBANKS, AK 99701 

Entity Physical Address: 511 30TH AVE, FAIRBANKS, AK 99701 

REGISTERED AGEi TT 

Agent Name: NATHAN DAVIS 

Registered Mailing Address: 868 6TH AVE, FAIRBANKS, AK 99701 

Registered Physical Address: 868 6TH AVE, FAIRBANKS, AK 99701 

AK Entity# Name 

Dayton Maccallum 

Jameson Johnson 

Nathan Davis 

F ILED DocUMEl JTS 

Date Filed 

8/15/2016 

8122/2016 

Type 

Creation Filing 

Initial Report 

Titles 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Filing 

Percent Owned 

10 

10 

80 

Certificate 

Juneau Mailing Address 
P.O. Box 110806 

Juneau, AK 99811-0806 

Anchorage Mailing/Physical Address 
550 West Seventh Avenue 

Physical Address 
333 Willoughby Avenue 

9th Floor 
Juneau, AK 99801 -1770 

1ttps ://www.com merce .a las ka .gov/c bp /Main/Co rporat io nDeta ii .aspx? id= 10040751 

Suite 1500 
Anchorage, AK 99501 -3567 

Phone Numbers 
Main Phone: (907) 269-8160 

FAX: (907) 269-8156 

10/6/16, 9:59 AM 

Page 1 of 2 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 30 of 144



Alaska Business License# 

Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 
Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 

P.O. Box 110806, Juneau, Alaska 99811-0806 

This is to certify that 

GREEN LIFE SUPPLY LLC 

863 6T AVE FAIRBANKS AK 99701 

owned by 

GREEN LIFE SUPPLY, LLC 

is licensed by the department to conduct business for the period 

August 22, 2016 through December 31, 2017 
for the following line of business: 

11 - Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 
42 -Trade 

This license shall not be taken as permission to do business in the state without 
having complied with the other requirements of the laws of the State or of the United States. 

This license must be posted in a conspicuous place at the business location. 
It is not transferable or assignable. 

Chris Hladick 

1041284 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 31 of 144



OPERA TING AGREEMENT - Green Life Supply, LLC 

A Member-Managed Limited Liability Company 

Alaska Entity# ·1 :', '""l,\ L1] S\ 
THIS OPERA TI1 G AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and 

entered into this ·':) \ day of July, 2016. by: Nathan A. Davis, Jameson 
Johnson, and Dayton G. MacCallu m as members and managers of Green Life 
Supply, LLC (hereinafter the ·'Company .. ). 

This Agreement (unless amended) shall continue in full force and effect, 
and be binding upon each individual and/or business entity as may be 
subsequently admitted to the Company. The individuals and/or business entities 
shall be known as and referred to as ·'Members" and individually as a ·'Member." 

ARTICLE I - Company Formation and Registered Agent 

1.1 FORMATION. The Members have fon11ed a Limited Liability Company 
subject to the provisions of the Limited Liability Company Act (the "Act") as 
currentlv in effect as of this date of this A2:reement. Articles of Or2:anization were . ~ ~ 

filed \Yith the State of Alaska Department of Commerce and Economic 
Development on ·\ \ , -, , -:. ;\ 1 ("':, . 2016. and a Ce11ificate of Organization was 
subsequent ly issued. Any addit1onal documentation as may from time to time be 
required shall be filed ,Yith the State of Alaska at the designated office for 
maintaining such records. 

1.2 NAME. The name of the Company shall be : Green Life Supply, LLC. 

1.3 PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS/ REGISTERED AGENT. The 
name of the registered agent and location of the principal business office of the 
Company shall be: 

Nathan A. Da,.: is 863 6th Ave Fairbanks, AK 9970 1 

or at such other place as the member(s) may from time to time se lect. 

1.4 TERM. The Company has commenced doing business in calendar year 2016. 
and the business shall continue in perpetuity. unless sooner terminated as provided 
in this Agreement. or by operation of la,\'. or at the direction of the Member(s). 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 32 of 144



1.5 BUSINESS PURPOSE. The purpose of the Company is to operate the 
business of ALL OTHER MISCELLANEOUS CROP F AJUvITNG and any other 
]a\Yful act or activity for which a Limited Liability Company may be fom1ed under 
the Limited Liabilitv statutes of the State of Alaska. 

1.6 NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF MEMBERS. The name and place of 
residence of each Member shall be set forth in an exhibit attached to this 
Agreement. 

1.7 ADMISSION OF ADDITIONAL MEMBERS. Except as otherwise 
expressly proYided in this Agreement, no additional Members may be admitted to 
the Company \Yithout the prior unanimous \\Titten consent of the then-existing 
Members. 

ARTICLE 2 - Capital Contributions 

2.1 INITIAL CONTRIBUTIONS. The Members shall initially contribute to the 
Company capital in the fonn of cash or cash equiYalent, with a combined Yalue of 
s; 10.000. 

2.2 ADDITIONAL CONTRIBUTIONS/ INTEREST. No Member shall be 
ob ligated to make any additional contribution to the Company without the prior 
unanimous ,Hitten consent of the Members . Members are not entitled to interest 
or other compensation for or on account of their capital contributions to the 
Company. except to the extent, if any. expressly proYided in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3 - Profits, Losses and Distributions 

3.1 PROFITS/LOSSES. For financia l. accounting and tax purposes the 
Company's net profits or net losses shall be determined on an annual basis and 
shall be allocated to the Members in proportion to each Member's relative capital 
interest in the Company. and as may be amended from time to time in accordance 
\,ith Treasury Regulation 1.704- 1. 

3.2 DISTRIBUTIONS. The Members shall determine and distribute available 
funds annually . or at more frequent interYals as they deem fit. ··Available funds.' · 
as refeITed to herein. shall mean the net cash of the Company available after 
appropriate provision is made for expenses and liabilities. as determined by the 
Members . Distributions in liquidation of the Company or in liquidation of a 
Member·s interest shall be made in accordance \Yith the positiYe capital account 
balances pursuant to Treasury Regulation l .704-l(b)(2)(ii)(b)(2). To the extent a 
\1ember shall ha,·e a negatiYe capital account balance. there shall be a qualified 
income offset. as set forth in Treasury Regulation l. 70-J.- l(b)(2)( ii)(d) . 

' 
, A r, !' 

! J t 

l') 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 33 of 144



ARTICLE 4 - Management 

4.1 MANAGEMENT OF THE COlVIPANY. The Members. within the 
authoritY 2ranted bY the Act and the tem1s of this A2reement. shall ha Ye the 

.I i...., ,,I ._ 

complete power and authority to manage and operate the Company and make all 
decisions affecting its business and affairs. Such authority includes. but is not 
limited to. all decisions as to: (a) the sale. development, lease or other disposition 
of the Company's assets; (b) the purchase or other acquisition of other assets of all 
kinds; ( c) the management of all or any part of the Company · s assets : ( d) the 
borrO\Ying of money and the granting of security interests in the Company· s 
assets: ( e) the pre-payment, refinancing or extension of any loan affecting the 
Company's assets; (f) the compromise or release of any of the Company's claims 
or debts; and (g) the employment of persons, firms or corporations for the 
operation and management of the Company's business . 

--J..2 DECISIONS AND DOCUMENTS. Except as othen,ise provided in this 
Agreement. all decisions and documents relating to the management and operation 
of the Company shall be made and executed by the Members. If there are t\YO 
Members. all decisions shall be jointly made. If there are more than t\\O 
Members. then decisions shall be made by a majority of the Members . 

4.3 THIRD PARTIES. Third parties dealing with the Company shall be entitled 
to rely conclusi\·ely upon the power and authority of a sole Member. or a majority 
in interest if more than one Member. to manage and operate the business and 
affairs of the Company. 

4.4 EXCULPATION. Any act or omission of a Member. the effect of \Yhich 
may cause or result in loss or damage to the Company or any other individual 
Member(s). if done in good faith to promote the best interests of the Company. 
shall not subject the Member to any liability to other members. 

4 .5 INDEMNIFICATION. The Company shall indemnify any person \Yho ,, as 
or is a party defendant or is threatened to be made a par1y defendant. in any 
pending or completed action, suit or proceeding. \Yhether ciYil. criminal. 
administrative. or im·estigative ( other than an action by or in the right of the 
Company) by reason of the fact that he is or \YaS a Member of the Company. 
Manager. employee or agent of the Company. or is or ,,·as sen·ing at the request of 
the Company. for expenses (including attorney · s fees) . judgments. fines. and 
amounts p a id in settlement. actually and reasonably incurred in connect ion n ith 

such action. suit or proceeding. if the person is determined to ha,·e acted in good 
faith and in a manner he/she reasonably belie,·ed to be in the best interests of the 

., 

.) 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 34 of 144



Company, and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no 
reasonable cause to believe his/her conduct \Yas unlmYful. The termination of any 
action, suit. or proceeding by judgment, order. settlement. conYiction. or upon a 

plea of "nolo contendere" or its equivalent, shall not in itself create a presumption 
that the person did or did not act in good faith and in a manner \Yhich he/she 
reasonab lv bel ieved to be in the best interests of the Company. and, \Yith respect to 
any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his/her 

conduct was la\Yful. 

4.6 RECORDS. The managing Member(s) shall cause the Company to keep at its 
principal place of business the fo llO\Ying: 

(a) a current list in alphabetical order of the full name and current physical 
address of each Member: 

(b) a copy of the Certificate of Organization and any other documentation 
ev idencing compliance \Yith the Act. as \Yell as the Company Operating 
Agreement and all amendments; 

(c) copies of the Company's fed eral, state and local income tax returns and 
reports, if any, for the three (3) most recent years: 

( d) copies of any financial statements of the Company for the three (3) most 
recent years. 

ARTICLE 5 - Salaries, Reimbursement, and Payment of Expenses 

5.1 ORGANIZATION EXPENSES. All e:-;:penses incurred in connection \Yith 
organization of the Company will be paid by the Company. 

5.2 SALARY. No sa lary \Yill be paid to a Member for the performance of his or 
her duties under this Agreement unless the salary has been approved in ,niting by 
the Members . or if more than t\YO Members. then by a majority of the Members. 

5.3 LEGAL AND ACCOUNTING SERVICE S. The Company may obtain 
legal and accounting services to the e:-;:tent reasonab ly necessary to conduct the 
Company's business. 

ARTICLE 6 - Accounting Reports, Tax Returns, Fiscal Year, Banking 

6.1 METHOD OF ACCOUNTING. The Company \\ill use the method of 
accounti ng as pre\ ·iously determined by the Member(s) fo r financial repo11ing and 
ta,;: purposes. or such other method as may be recommended by the accountant for 
the Company. 

..J. n 
IJ[,/ 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 35 of 144



6.2 FISCAL YEAR; TAXABLE YEAR. The fiscal year and the taxable year 
of the Company is the calendar year. 

6.3 CAPITAL ACCOUNTS. The Company will maintain a Capital Account for 
each Member on a cumulative basis in accordance \Yith federal income tax 
accounting principles. 

6.4 BANKING. All funds of the Company will be deposited in a separate bank 
account in a financial institution, the name and location to be selected at the 
discretion of the Members. or if more than t,Yo Members, then as detennined by a 
majority of the Members. Company funds \Yill be irn·ested or deposited with a 
financial institution. the accounts or deposi ts of which are insured or guaranteed 
by an agency of the United States government. 

ARTICLE 7 - Transfer/Assignment of Interest/Removal of Member 

7.1 SALE OR ENCUMBRANCE PROHIBITED. Except as othern·ise 
permitted in this Agreement. no Member may ,·oluntarily or involuntarily transfer. 
sell. conYey. encumber. pledge, assign, or otherwise dispose of (hereinafter 
collectively. "transfer") an interest in the Company \Yithout the prior \\Titten 
consent of the other Member. or if more than t\YO Members. then by a majority of 
the non-transferring Members. 

7 .2 RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL. Not,Yithstanding Ariicle 7 .1. a Member 
may transfer all or any pan of the Member's interest in the Company (the 
"Interest") as follo"-s: 

(a) The Member desiring Lo transfer his/her Interest must first prO\ ide 
written notice (the " otice") to the other Members. specifying the price and terms 
on which the Member is prepared to sell the Interest (the "Offer"). 

(b) For a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of the Notice. the non
transferring Members may acquire all. but not less than all. of the Interest at the 
price and under the terms specified in the Offer. If the other Members desiring to 
acquire the Interest cannot agree among themseh·es on the allocation of the 
Interest among them. the allocat ion \Yill be proponional to the O,Ynership Interests 
of those Members desiring to acquire the Interest. 

(c) Closing of the sale of the Interest \\·ill occur as tated in the Offer: 
pro\·ided ho,YeYer. that the closing \Yill occur not more than fo11y -fi,·e ( -+5) days 
after e:\piration of the 30-day notice period. 

) 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 36 of 144



(d) If the other Members fail or refuse to notify the transferring Member of 
their des ire to acquire all of the Interest proposed to be transferred within the 
30-day period follO\Ying receipt of the Notice. then the non-transferring 
Member( s) ,Yill be deemed to have waived their right to acquire the Interest on the 
terms described in the Offer. and the transferrirn2: Member mav sell and convev the '-- ., ., 
Interest consistent with the Offer to any other person or entity: provided hO\Yever. 
that not\Yithstanding anything in Artic le 7 .2 to the contrary, should the proposed 
sale to a third person be at a price or on terms that are more favorable to the 
purchaser than stated in the Offer, then the transferring Member must first re-offer 
the sale of the Interest to the remaining Members at the more favorable price and 
terms; provided further, that if a proposed sale to a third person is not closed 
within six months after the expiration of the 30-day period describe above, then 
the pro\ isions of Article 7 .2 \Yill again apply to the Interest proposed to be sold or 
transferred. 

7 .3 SUBSTITUTED PARTIES. Any transfer in which the Transferee becomes 
a fully -substituted Member is not permitted unless and until: 

( 1) Documents and instruments of conveyance necessary or appropriate in 
the opinion of counsel to the Company to effect the transfer and to confinn the 
agreement of the transferee to be bound by the proYisions of this Agreement: and 

(2) The transferor furnishes to the Company an opinion of counsel. 
satis factory to the Company. that the transfer \Yill not cause the Company to 
terminate for federa l income tax purposes, or that any such termination would not 
othenYise adversely impact the best interests of the Company or the other 
Members. 

7.-+ DEA TH, INCOMPETENCY, OR BANKRUPTCY OF MEMBER. In the 
eYent of death. adjudicated incompetence. or bankruptcy of a Member. unless the 
Company exerci ses its rights under Article 7 .5 . the successor-in-interest to the 
Member (\\· hether an estate. personal representative. bankruptcy trustee. or 
othern ise) \Yill recei,·e only the economic right to receive distributions \\ hen ever 
made by the Company and the Member's allocable share of taxable income. gain. 
loss. deduction. and credit (the "Economic Rights" ) unless and until such time as a 
majority of the other Members as determined on a per capita basis admit the 
transferee as a fully -substituted Member in accordance \\ ith the proYisions of 
Article 7.3. 

7 .5 DEA TH BUYOUT. >Jot\Yithstanding the foregoing pro\ is ions of th is 
Artic le. the Members covenant and agree that on the death of any Member. the 
Company. at its option. by proYiding written notice to the estate of the deceased 
iV!ember "ithin 180 days of the death of the Member. may purchase. acquire. and 

6 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 37 of 144



redeem the Interest of the deceased Member in the Company pursuant to the 
fol!O\Ying proYision: 

(a) The value of each Member's Interest in the Company will be 
determined on the date this Agreement is signed. and shall be stated as each 

..., L, ,I 

individual Member's .. capital contribution.·· The value of each Member's Interest 
,Yill be re-determined unanimously by the Members annually, unless the Members 
unanimously decide to re -determine those values more frequently. The purchase 
price for a deceased Member's interest shall be the value last-determined before 
the death of such Member: proYided hO\Yever. that if the latest valuation is more 
than t\Yo years before the death of the deceased Member. the pro\'isions of Article 
7.5(b) ,,·ill apply in detennining the , ·alue of the Member's Interest in the 
Company. 

(b) If the Members have failed to , ·alue the deceased Member's Interest 
,Yi thin the prior two-year period. the Yalue of such ::vfember's Interest in the 
Company on the date of death. in the first instance. will be determined by mutual 
agreement of the surYiving Members and the personal representative of the estate 
of the deceased Member. If the parties cannot reach an agreement on the value 
,yithin 30 days after the appointment of the personal representative of the deceased 
Member. then the sun-iving Members and the personal representative each must 
select a qualified appraiser ,Yithin the next succeeding 30 days . The appraisers so 
selected will each then independently determine a fair market value for the 
Interest. If the Members and personal representative are still unable to agree on a 
value ,Yi thin 30 days of being selected. then the two appraisers will select a third 
appraiser within 30 days of reaching an impasse. The third appraiser shall revie,Y 
the , ·a tues ascribed to the Interest by the first t,Yo appraisers. and then solely 
determine a fair , ·alue for the Interest of the decedent. That amount ,Yill be final 
and binding on all parties and their respecti,·e successors, assigns. and 
representati,·es. The costs and e:,.,:penses of the third appraiser and any costs and 
expenses of the appraiser retained but not pai d for by the estate of the deceased 
Member ,,·ill be offset against the purchase price paid for the deceased Member's 
Interest in the Company. 

(c) Closing of the sale of the deceased Member's Interest in the Company 
,,·ill be held at the office of the Company on a date designated by the Company. 
not later than 90 days after fina l detennination of fair market value of the deceased 
Member's Interest in the Company . If no personal representative has been 
appo inte d ,,·ithin 60 days after the deceased Member's death. the sun ·i,·ing 

Members ha, e the right to app ly for and ha, e a personal representative appointed . 

(d) At closing. the Company \\·ill pay the purchase price for the deceased 
Member's Interest in the Company. 1fthe purchase price is less than SI0.000. the 

7 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 38 of 144



purchase price ,Yill be paid in cash; if the purchase price is S 10,000 or more. the 
purchase price will be paid as follow-s: 

( 1) S 10.000 in cash, bank cashier's check, or certified funds; 

(2) The balance of the purchase price shall be paid by the Company 
executing and delivering its promissory note for the balance, \Yith interest at 
the prime interest rate stated by primary banking institution utilized by the 
Company ( or its successors and assigns) , at the time of the deceased 
Member's death. Interest ,Yill be payable monthly, with the principal sum 
being due and payable in three equal annual installments. The promissory 
note will be unsecured and will not have a prepayment penalty. 

(e) At closing. the deceased Member's estate or personal representative 
must assign to the Company all of the deceased Member's Interest in the Company 
free and clear of all liens , claims, and encumbrances, and further agrees to execute 
all other instruments as may reasonably be necessary to vest in the Company all of 
the deceased Member's right. title. and interest in the Company and its assets. 

(f) On completion of the purchase of the deceased Member's Interest in the 
Company. the O,Ynership Interests of the remaining Members \\·ill increase 
proportionately to their then-existing Ownership Interests. 

7.6 ASSIGNMENT BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT OF MEMBERS. 

Not,Yithstanding any of the above proYisions of this Article 7. a Member 
mav. ,Yith unanimous consent of all of the other remaining members. free]\· assign 

"' I ...... I ., ........ 

the Member's interest in the Company, and upon the terms and conditions as may 
be agreed upon in a separate \\Titing signed by all members . 

7.7 INVOLUNTARY REMOVAL OF ME1\1BER FOR CAUSE 

A Member may be involuntarily removed from the Company if a Member 
holding a majority interest in the Company. or a combination of Members holding 
a majority interest (majority percentage of o,Ynership interest) in the Company 
finds that any of the follo,,·ing circumstances exist: 

(a) The Member to be removed committed a felony crime. as such crimes 
are defined under the la,vs of the State of Alaska. on the Company's 
business premises or during the course and scope of Company business: 

(b) The Member to be removed negligently. recklessly. kno,vingly. or 
intentionally. and ,,·ithout the consent of the other Members. shared 
proprietary Company information,, ith someone outside the Company. 

8 /J(/ 
City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 39 of 144



"Proprietary Company infonnation'· includes but is not limited to 
infonnation regarding the methods and means of producing the 
Company's products, infonnation regarding the design. construction. 

and operation of the Company's production facilities. and infonnation 
regarding the Company's business practices other than such information 
that is generally available to the Company 's customers or the general 
public. 

(c) The Member to be removed accepted employment by, or agreed to 
provide consulting or other services to, any third party. \Vhether such 
party is an individual or an entity of some sort . and such employment or 
services involves or is related to the production. sale, or marketing of 
cannabis products. 

( d) The Member to be removed recklessly or intentionally engaged in 
conduct or committed an act or omission that resulted in se\ ere damage 
to the Company's interests . "Severe damage to the Company ·s 
interests" includes but is not limited to: 

1. Damage or destruction of the Company ·s product in a manner 
that results in damages or loss exceeding S:2.000 .00 . 

11. Damage or destruction of the Company·s production facilities 
or other business premises in a manner that results in 
damages or loss exceeding S2 .000. 

111. Harm to a third-party that creates liability on the part of the 
Company in an amount that exceeds Sl.000.00 . 

(e) The Member to be removed recklessly. kno\vingly . or intentionally 
engaged in repeated acts or omissions that harm the interests of the 
Company. after having been notified by a majority of the other 
Members that such acts or omissions \Vere harmful to the interests of the 
Company. 

If a Member is removed pursuant to this section (Involuntary Remo\ al of 
Member) the Member's O\vnership interest shall be purchased as described in 
Section 7 .5 (Death Buyout) above. 

ARTICLE 8 - Dissolution and Winding Up of Company 

8.1 DISSOLUTION. The Company \\·ill be dissolved on the happening of any of 
the follo\ving e\·ents: 

9 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 40 of 144



(a) Sale. transfer, or other disposition of all or substantially all of the 
property of the Company; 

(b) By agreement of all of the Member- : 

(c) By operation of law: or 

( d) By the death, incompetence. e:,.,:pulsion. or bankruptcy of a Member, or 
the occurrence of any event that terminates the continued membership of a 
Member in the Company. unless there are then remaining at least the minimum 
number of Members required by law and all of the remain ing Members, w ithin 
120 days after the date of the event. elect to continue the business of the Company. 

8.2 WINDING UP. Upon dissolution of the Company (if the Company is not 
continued as provided above), the Members must take full account of the 
Company's assets and liabilities, and the assets will be liquidated as promptly as is 
consistent with obtaining thei r fai r value. and the proceeds. to the extent sufficient 
to pay the Company's obligations ,Yith respect to the liquidation. \Yill be applied 
and distributed, after any gain or loss realized in connection \\·ith the liqu idation 
has been allocated in accordance with Article 3 of this Agreement, and the 
Members' Capital Accounts haYe been adjusted to reflect the allocation and all 
other transactions through the date of the distribution. in the following order: 

(a) To payment and discharge of the expenses of liquidation and of all the 
Company's debts and liabilities to persons or organizat ions other than Members: 

(b) To payment and discharge of any Company debts and liabilities owed 
to M embers; and 

(c) To Members in the amount of their respective adj usted Capita l Account 
balances on the date of di stribution. 

ARTICLE 9 - General Provisions 

9.1 AMENDMENTS. Amendments to this Agreement may be proposed by any 
Member. A proposed amendment \Yi ll be adopted and become effecti,·e only upon 
the ,nitten and unanimous apprO\·a l of all Members. 

9.2 GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the 
parties under it are go,·erned by and interpreted in accordance \\ ith the Ja,Ys of the 
State of Alaska . 

9.3 ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION. Thi s Agreement constitutes 
the entire understanding and agreement bet\\ een the Memhers ,Yith respect to the 

10 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 41 of 144



subject matter of this Agreement. No agreements: understandings. restrictions: 
representations. or \Yarranties exist bet\Yeen or among the Members other than 
those in this Agreement or referred to or provided for in this Agreement. No 
modificat ion or amendment of any provision of this Agreement will be binding on 
anv Member unless in \\Titing and siirned bv all the Members . 

.,, '-- '-- ., 

9.4 ATTORI~EY FEES. In the event of any suit or action to enforce or interpret 
any prO\ is ion of this Agreement ( or that is based on this Agreement) . the 
prevailing party is entitled to recover. in addition to other costs. reasonable 
attorney fees in connection with the suit, action. or arbitration, and in any appeals. 
The determination of \Yho is the ··prevailing party .. and the amount of reasonable 
attorney fees to be paid to the prevailing party will be decided by the court or 
courts . including any appellate courts. of by the Arbitrator if the matter is 
submitted to arb itration .. 

9.5 FURTHER EFFECT. The parties agree to execute other documents as may 
be necessary to further effect and eYidence the terms of this Agreement. as long as 
the terms and pro\·isions of the other documents are fully consistent \Yith the terms 
of this Agreement. 

9.6 SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be 
Yoid or unenforceable. that term or provision \\·ill be severed from this Agreement. 
the balance of the Agreement will sur',iYe. and the balance of this Agreement will 
be reasonably construed to carry out the intent of the parties as e\·idenced by the 
terms of this Agreement. 

9.7 CAPTIONS. The captions used in this Agreement are for the convenience of 
the parties only and will not be interpreted so as to enlarge. reduce, modify or alter 
the terms and pro\ ·isions of this Agreement. 

9.8 NOTICES. All notices requi red to be given by thi s Agreement \Yill be in 
\Hiti ng and \\·ill be e ffect iYe \\hen actually deliYered or. if mailed. \\'hen deposited 
as certi fi ed mail. postage prepaid. directed to the address designated for each 
Member. or to such other address as a Member may specify by notice gi\·en in 
confonnance \\ ith these proYis ions to the other M embers. 

I~ WITNESS \\"HEREOF. the parties to thi s Agreement execute this Operating 
Agreement as of the date and year first abo\·e \\Titten. 

MEMBERS: 

::\'athan A. DaYis 

11 

/ 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 42 of 144



· , u -,, v - - , c c. c I Si2:nature 
I 7 - I 7 -

Date: 7 -~ L - I ·7c 

Jameson JohRS1)11 

~ 
~ G. Ma<!Callum 

Date: j .- j / ,_ /6 

siE= 2 ;:?) / Signature Date: 7- 3 !-/£ 

12 t f J , I , I ,, ./ 
City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 43 of 144



Green Life Supply, LLC 

EXHIBIT 1 to Operating Agreement 

LISTING OF MEMBERS 

As of the ~3~1 _ day of July, 2016, the following is a list of Members 
of the Company: 

NAME: ADDRESS: 

Nathan A. Davis 

Jameson Johnson 

863 6th Ave, Fairbanks AK 99701 

525 Sprucewood Rd, Fairbanks, AK 99709 

Dayton Grant MacCallum 2375 Wildflower Lane, North Pole, AK 99705 

Authorized by Member(s) to provide Member Listing: 

MEMBERS: 

~ ""'---==----__:::;.- --==----,L:...---,L:...-- --·/ Signature 

Date: 

D~n G::_cC•ll--um 
~~~~~-__ -__ -_ _ _ _ __ / Signature Date: 7-:J/--- /h 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 44 of 144



Green Life Supply, LLC 

EXHIBIT 2 to Operating Agreement 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

Pursuant to ARTICLE 2, the Members' initial contribution to the Company 
capital is stated to be $10,000.00. The description and each individual 

portion of this initial contribution is agreed to as follows: 

NAME: CONTRIBUTION: 0/o OWNERSHIP: 

Nathan A. Davis $8,000.00 80°/o 

Jameson Johnson $1,000.00 10°/o 

Dayton G. MacCallum $1,000.00 

MEMBERS: 

Jameson Johnson 

..::.~~ :....____,,.~~~~~~~z__:==~~s=~ nature 

Da~ G~ lum 

_ J~~:::::::::-~~~~========-- / Signature 

Date: ;-&{ ·- Lb 

Date: 8 --~ / -/(, 

D ate: 7 - Cs I - /l 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 45 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 46 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 47 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 48 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 49 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 50 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 51 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 52 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 53 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 54 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 55 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 56 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 57 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 58 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 59 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 60 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 61 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 62 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 63 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 64 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 65 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 66 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 67 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 68 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 69 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 70 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 71 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 72 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 73 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 74 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 75 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 76 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 77 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 78 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 79 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 80 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 81 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 82 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 83 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 84 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 85 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 86 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 87 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 88 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 89 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 90 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 91 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 92 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 93 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 94 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 95 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 96 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 97 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 98 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 99 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 100 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 101 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 102 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 103 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 104 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 105 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 106 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 107 of 144



Ordinance No. 6060 
Page 1 

Introduced by: Council Members Pruhs and Rogers 
                                 Finance Committee:  August 29, 2017 

  Date:  September, 11 2017 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6060 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE A STIPEND AND RESOLUTIONS TO 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES WITH DRINKING WATER  

CONTAMINATED BY PERFLUORINATED COMPOUNDS (PFCs) 
 

WHEREAS, past training activities at the Regional Fire Training Center, which is 
owned and operated by the City of Fairbanks (City), have resulted in ground water 
contamination that has migrated off the property and contaminated wells in south Fairbanks 
with PFCs; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City wants to ensure residents and businesses affected by this 

contamination have access to clean drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are four categories of properties in question:  
 
Category 1 properties have wells connected to a structure’s interior plumbing, the 
wells are the structure’s only source of drinking water, and the water in the wells is 
contaminated above the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) Lifetime 
Health Advisory (LHA) Level;  
 
Category 2 properties have wells that are not connected to the structure’s interior 
plumbing, the wells are contaminated above the EPA’s LHA Level, and a holding tank 
is currently being used as the structure’s source of drinking water;   

 
Category 3 properties have wells that test below the EPA’s LHA Level but are above 
85% of the EPA’s LHA Level.  

 
Category 4 properties do not have a well.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is providing valuable real estate upgrades to 

Category 1 and 2 participants.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITYOF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
  

SECTION 1. For Category 1 properties, the City will fund the water service connections to 
water mains and will pay a stipend for water bills over the next two years, not to exceed $2,500 
for those two years, with the goal of having these properties completed by December 2017. 

 
SECTION 2.  For Category 2 properties, the City will fund the connection to the water mains 
with the goal of completion by September 2018. 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 108 of 144



Ordinance No. 6060 
Page 2 

 
SECTION 3. Category 1 and 2 participants, to receive real estate upgrades and water credit to 
College Utilities Corp., will execute a “Waiver of Claims” with the City of Fairbanks for any/all 
real estate loss of value from potential (PFC’s) contamination. 

 
SECTION 4. For Category 3 properties the City will fund the connection to the water mains 
during the next construction season upon the 85% target being reached.   

 
SECTION 5. For Category 4 properties, the residents will be required to connect to the water 
main at their expense. 
 
SECTION 6. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ___ day of September 2017. 
 
 

 
            _ 
       Jim Matherly, City Mayor 

 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 

  
   
  

 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
        _______________________________ 

D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 109 of 144



Ordinance or Resolution No: 6060

Abbreviated Title: STIPEND AND WATER RESOLUTIONS DUE TO PFC CONTAMINATION

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes X No

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes X No

UNKNOWN

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 Beyond Total

$100,000 $100,000
$0
$0

$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $100,000

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 Beyond Total

$100,000 $100,000
$0

$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $100,000

EXPLANATION

Initial CR Date 8/28/2017Reviewed by Finance Department:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

I.  REQUEST:

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES

CLAIMS

TOTAL

ESTIMATED FUNDING SOURCES

Risk Fund

TOTAL

It is the intent to provide the stipend to all properties who obtain category one designation in 
the future. 

To provide a $2,500 drinking water stipend to 40 category one properties in 2017. This stipend 
will be paid directly to Golden Heart Utilities (GHU) upon completion of the hook up to the 
GHU water main/utility. 

Please see the Ordinance for more descriptive treatment of other categories of properties with 
potential perfluorinated compound (PFC) contamination

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?

Other

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 110 of 144



Ordinance No. 6060, as Amended 
(Proposed Substitute A) 

Page 1 

Introduced by: Council Members Pruhs and Rogers 
                                 Finance Committee:  August 29, 2017 

  Date:  September, 11 2017 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6060, AS AMENDED 
(PROPOSED SUBSTITUTE A) 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE A STIPEND AND RESOLUTIONS TO 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES WITH DRINKING WATER 
CONTAMINATED BY PERFLUORINATED COMPOUNDS (PFCs) 

 
WHEREAS, past training activities at the Regional Fire Training Center, which is 

owned and operated by the City of Fairbanks (City), have resulted in ground water 
contamination that has migrated off the property and contaminated wells in south Fairbanks 
with PFCs; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City wants to ensure residents and businesses affected by this 

contamination have access to clean drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are four categories of properties in question:  
 
Category 1 properties have wells connected to a structure’s interior plumbing, the 
wells are the structure’s only source of drinking water, and the water in the wells is 
contaminated above the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) Lifetime 
Health Advisory (LHA) Level;  
 
Category 2 properties have wells that are not connected to the structure’s interior 
plumbing, the wells are contaminated above the EPA’s LHA Level, and a holding tank 
is currently being used as the structure’s source of drinking water;   

 
Category 3 properties have wells that test below the EPA’s LHA Level but are above 
85% of the EPA’s LHA Level, and the wells are the structure’s only source of 
drinking water or a holding tank is currently being used as the structure’s source 
of drinking water.  

 
Category 4 properties do not have a well.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is providing valuable real estate upgrades to 

Category 1, 2, and 3 participants.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITYOF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 

  
SECTION 1. For Category 1 properties, the City will fund the water service connections to 
water mains and will pay a stipend for water bills over the next two years, not to exceed $2,500 
for those two years, with the goal of having these properties completed by December 2017. 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 111 of 144



Ordinance No. 6060, as Amended 
(Proposed Substitute A) 

Page 2 

 
SECTION 2.  For Category 2 properties, the City will fund the connection to the water mains 
with the goal of completion by September 2018. 

 
SECTION 3. Category 1, 2, and 3 participants, to receive real estate upgrades and water credit 
to College Utilities Corp., will execute a “Waiver of Claims” with the City of Fairbanks for 
any/all real estate loss of value from potential (PFC’s) contamination. 

 
SECTION 4. For Category 3 properties the City will fund the connection to the water mains 
during the next construction season upon the 85% target being reached.   

 
SECTION 5. For Category 4 properties, the residents will be required to connect to the water 
main at their expense. 
 
SECTION 6. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ___ day of September 2017. 
 
 

 
 

            _ 
       Jim Matherly, City Mayor 

 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 

  
   
  

 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
        _______________________________ 

D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 112 of 144



Ordinance No. 6060, as Amended 
(Proposed Substitute A) 

Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 6060

Abbreviated Title: STIPEND AND WATER RESOLUTIONS DUE TO PFC CONTAMINATION

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes X No

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes X No

UNKNOWN

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 Beyond Total

$100,000 $100,000

$0

$0
$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $100,000

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 Beyond Total

$100,000 $100,000

$0
$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $100,000

EXPLANATION

Initial CR Date 8/28/2017Reviewed by Finance Department:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

I.  REQUEST:

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES

CLAIMS

TOTAL

ESTIMATED FUNDING SOURCES

Risk Fund

TOTAL

It is the intent to provide the stipend to all properties who obtain category one designation 
in the future. 

To provide a $2,500 drinking water stipend to 40 category one properties in 2017. This 
stipend will be paid directly to Golden Heart Utilities (GHU) upon completion of the hook 
up to the GHU water main/utility. 

Please see the Ordinance for more descriptive treatment of other categories of properties 
with potential perfluorinated compound (PFC) contamination

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?

Other

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 113 of 144



Ordinance No. 6060, as Amended 
(Proposed Substitute B) 

Page 1 

Introduced by: Council Members Pruhs and Rogers 
                                 Finance Committee:  August 29, 2017 

  Date:  September, 11 2017 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6060, AS AMENDED 
(PROPOSED SUBSTITUTE B) 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE A STIPEND AND RESOLUTIONS TO 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES WITH DRINKING WATER 
CONTAMINATED BY PERFLUORINATED COMPOUNDS (PFCs) 

 
WHEREAS, past training activities at the Regional Fire Training Center, which is 

owned and operated by the City of Fairbanks (City), have resulted in ground water 
contamination that has migrated off the property and contaminated wells in south Fairbanks 
with PFCs; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City wants to ensure residents and businesses affected by this 

contamination have access to clean drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are four categories of properties in question:  
 
Category 1 properties have wells connected to a structure’s interior plumbing, the 
wells are the structure’s only source of drinking water, and the water in the wells is 
contaminated above the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) Lifetime 
Health Advisory (LHA) Level;  
 
Category 2 properties have wells that are not connected to the structure’s interior 
plumbing, the wells are contaminated above the EPA’s LHA Level, and a holding tank 
is currently being used as the structure’s source of drinking water;   

 
Category 3 properties have wells that test below the EPA’s LHA Level but are above 
85% of the EPA’s LHA Level, and the wells are the structure’s only source of 
drinking water or a holding tank is currently being used as the structure’s source 
of drinking water.  

 
Category 4 properties do not have a well.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is providing valuable real estate upgrades to 

Category 1, 2, and 3 participants.   
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:  

  
SECTION 1. For Category 1 properties, the City will fund the water service connections to 
water mains and will pay a stipend for water bills over the next two five years, not to 
exceed $2,500 $6,250 for those two five years, with the goal of having these properties 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 114 of 144



Ordinance No. 6060, as Amended 
(Proposed Substitute B) 

Page 2 

completed by December 2017.  
 
SECTION 2.  For Category 2 properties, the City will fund the connection to the water mains 
with the goal of completion by September 2018.  
 
SECTION 3. Category 1, 2, and 3 participants, to receive real estate upgrades and water credit 
to College Utilities Corp., will execute a “Waiver of Claims” with the City of Fairbanks for 
any/all real estate loss of value from potential (PFC’s) contamination.  
 
SECTION 4. For Category 3 properties the City will fund the connection to the water mains 
during the next construction season upon the 85% target being reached.   
 
SECTION 5. For Category 4 properties, the residents will be required to connect to the water 
main at their expense.  
 
SECTION 6. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ___ day of September 2017.  
 
 

 
 

            _ 
       Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
 
AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 

  
   
 

 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
        _______________________________ 

D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
  

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 115 of 144



Ordinance No. 6060, as Amended 
(Proposed Substitute B) 

Page 3 

 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 6060

Abbreviated Title: STIPEND AND WATER RESOLUTIONS DUE TO PFC CONTAMINATION

Department(s): RISK

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No x

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes x No

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No x

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

$0 $250,000 $0 $250,000

$0 $250,000 $0 $250,000

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

$0 $250,000 $0 $250,000

.
$0 $250,000 $0 $250,000

Initial mb Date 9/20/2017

TOTAL

To provide $6,250 drinking water stipend to 40 category one properties.  This stipend will be paid directly to Golden 
Heart Utilities (GHU) upon completion of the hook up to the GHU water main/utility.  It is the intent to provide the 
stipend to all properties who obtain category one designation in the future.  Please see Ordinance for more 
descriptive treatment of other categories of properties with potential perfluorinated compound (PFC) contamination.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

City of Fairbanks Risk Fund

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
EXPENDITURES:

Claims

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 116 of 144



 
Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly 

Date:  September 11, 2017 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6061 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FGC SEC. 70-321 REGARDING 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR REMOVAL OF SNOW AND ICE FROM 

SIDEWALKS AND MOVING SNOW FROM PRIVATE PROPERTY ONTO 
A STREET OR SIDEWALK 

 
 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department is responsible for snow removal and street 
sanding on 355 lane-miles of roadway; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the maintenance priority for snow removal is to open all arterial and 
collector roads within 72 hours, followed by the clearing streets in residential neighborhoods and 
clearing sidewalks and curb ramps throughout the city; and 
 
 WHEREAS, current code provisions delineate responsibility for clearing snow and ice 
from sidewalks and prohibit moving snow from private property onto a street or sidewalk; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the city has limited resources for snow removal; and  
 
 WHEREAS, snow moved from private property onto the street can be a hazard and 
impacts operational efficiency and city resources, the cost of which should be borne by the 
responsible parties.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1. That Fairbanks General Code Section 70-321 is hereby amended as follows [new 
text in underlined bold font; deleted text in strikethrough font]:   
 

Sec. 70-321.  Snow and ice; removal; standing; casting on public property. 
 
  (a) A No person having control of any premise the care, either as owner or 
occupant, of any premises bordered by a graded or paved sidewalk must 
promptly shall fail to remove promptly any snow which may falls on the 
sidewalk and must nor fail to remove or sand any ice which may forms on the 
sidewalk, to the extent that the snow or ice is an impediment to pedestrians.   
 
  (b) It is shall be unlawful for any person to move snow or ice from private 
property or to hire, direct, or allow another person to move snow or ice 
from private property onto place, leave, deposit or cast upon any sidewalk, 
street, avenue or alley in the city any snow or ice taken from private property to 
the extent that the snow or ice is an impediment to use of the sidewalk, street, 
avenue or alley, provided, that. Iit is not a violation of this subsection to move 
snow from a sidewalk into the adjacent street.  

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 117 of 144



Ordinance No. 6061 
Page 2 

 
  (c) A person violating subsection (b) above is guilty of a minor offense.  A 
person charged with violating subsection (b) must respond to the City 
Clerk’s Office within 30 days of receipt of the citation.  Disposition of a 
charge under subsection (b) may be without court appearance pursuant to 
AS 29.25.070 and the Alaska Minor Offense Rules upon payment of a fine 
of $200 and payment of the state surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and 
AS 29.25.074.  The fines for these offenses may not be judicially reduced.  
The penalty for violation of this section shall be set forth in the City Schedule of 
Fees and Charges for Services.  
 
  (d) The director of public works, or designee, is authorized to direct the 
removal of any snow or ice that was taken from private property and 
moved to a sidewalk, street, avenue, or alley.  The cost of such removal shall 
be charged to the owner of the property from which the snow or ice was 
moved, provided the owner or person having control of the premise fails to 
do so within 24 hours after having received notice from the director of 
public works, or designee.  The cost of removal of any snow or ice done at 
the direction of the director of public works, or designee, under this 
subsection shall be set forth in the City Schedule of Fees and Chargers for 
Services. 
 
  (e) For purposes of this section, a person has control of a premise if they 
are the owner or occupant of the premise. 
 

 

SECTION 2. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ___ day of September 2017. 
 
 
            _ 
       Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 118 of 144



Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly 
Date:  September 25, 2017 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4808 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY SCHEDULE 
OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

RELATING TO SNOW REMOVAL 
 

WHEREAS, the City Schedule of Fees and Charges for Services was enacted in 
2008 by Ordinance No. 5744 and has been amended by resolution on several 
occasions since that time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 6061 amends FGC 70-321 regarding responsibility 
for removal of snow and ice from sidewalks and moving snow from private property onto 
a street or sidewalk and references charges for services in the City Schedule of Fees 
and Charges for Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the intent for charges for services is to cover the costs to provide 
such service. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council to amend page two 
of the Schedule of Fees and Charges for Services, effective upon approval of this 
resolution. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 25th day of September 2017. 

 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Jim Matherly, Mayor 

 
 
AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 119 of 144



City of Fairbanks Schedule of Fees and Charges for Services 
Page 2 

Category Code Sec. Topic Current Fee Description 

 

70-321
Moving snow from private property onto street 

or sidewalk.

$200 or 

actual cost, 

whichever is 

higher

Charge for services toPenalty for owner or actual 

person who moved snow in violation of Ordinance

70-322 Planting in Public Space  $        200.00 
Charge for services toPenalty for owner or actual 

person who planted in violation of Ordinance

ROW Excavation (Major) $500 + $0.30 $500 + $0.30 per LF for Trench Installations

ROW Excavation (Minor)  $        350.00 Flat rate

Driveway Connection to City ROW  $        250.00 Permit

Sidewalk or Street Closure  $        150.00 Permit

Borough Action Appeals  $          75.00 Hour (one hr min)

Replat, four or fewer lots  $        150.00 

Replat, subdivision, more than four lots.  $        250.00 

Quick Plats  $        150.00 

Stormwater Treatment/Connection/Discharge 

Plan Review
 $        300.00 

Includes engineering plan review, developer meeting, 

and site inspection.

Cooling Water Discharge & Connection to 

Storm Drain System Permit
 $        500.00 Annual Fee

Erosion and Sediment Control Plan Review  $        150.00 10,000 sq.ft. to 1 acre

SWPPP Plan Review  $        300.00 

SWPPP Site Inspection  $        150.00 

Plat & Map copies  $            6.00 Per copy

11 x 17 copies  $            2.00 Per copy

8.5 x 11 copies  $            1.00 First page; $0.25 per page thereafter

Miscellaneous Services  $          75.00 Per hour

Planimetric/Aerial Photograph CD.  $        300.00 

CD Preparation  $          25.00 Per disk if no research time required.

Developer's Agreement  Actual cost TBD based on meetings with City Engineer

ROW PERMITS:

ZONING SERVICES:

STORM WATER:

 

Engineering

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 120 of 144



  Introduced by:  Mayor Jim Matherly 
 Introduced:  September 25, 2017 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4809 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO 
ACCEPT FUNDS FROM THE ALASKA HIGHWAY SAFETY OFFICE 

FOR FFY2018 DUI TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT UNIT 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks has been notified by the Alaska Highway 
Safety Office that the City of Fairbanks was awarded $137,755 to address specific 
traffic safety priority areas; and  
  

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks was awarded funds for local law enforcement, 
particularly in the apprehension of DUI offenders; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks received positive citizen feedback regarding 

continued traffic enforcement, and this program is highly regarded by the Alaska 
Highway Safety Office due to reductions in fatal crashes in the Fairbanks area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is required to provide a match in the amount of 

$137,755 and plans to provide the required match through in-kind personnel costs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or 

his designee is authorized to execute any and all documents required for accepting 
funds on behalf of the City for this grant. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 25th Day of September 2017. 

 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:     
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 121 of 144



 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4809

Abbreviated Title: ALASKA HIGHWAY SAFETY OFFICE FFY2018 DUI TRAFFIC UNIT ACCEPTANCE

Department(s): POLICE DEPARTMENT

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

 

   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

  $137,755 $137,755

  $137,755 $137,755

   $0

   $0

   $0

 $0
$0 $0 $275,510 $275,510

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

  $137,755 $137,755

  $137,755 $137,755

  $0
$0 $0 $275,510 $275,510

Initial cp Date 9/19/2017

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

Alaska Highway Safety Office Grant (Federal Funds)

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
PROJECTS:

Personnel Wages & Benefits (Traffic Unit Officer - Grant)

Personnel Wages & Benefits (Traffic Unit Supervisor)

 

 

 

 
TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

Police Department General Funds 

 
TOTAL

The City will use in-kind personnel costs to meet the match requirements for this grant.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 122 of 144



  Introduced by:  Mayor Jim Matherly 
 Introduced:  September 25, 2017 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4810 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO 
ACCEPT FUNDS FROM THE ALASKA DIVISION OF HOMELAND 

SECURITY FOR THE FFY2017 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
PERFORMANCE GRANT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks received notification from the Alaska Division 

of Homeland Security and Emergency Management that the City of Fairbanks was 
awarded Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) funds to enhance 
response capabilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks will use funds to enhance emergency planning 

and operations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks was awarded $12,000, and a required match 

of $12,000 will be provided through in-kind personnel costs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or 

his designee is authorized to execute any and all documents required for accepting 
funds on behalf of the City for this grant. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 25th Day of September 2017. 

 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:     
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 
 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 123 of 144



 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4810

Abbreviated Title: FFY2017 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT ACCEPTANCE

Department(s): FIRE DEPARTMENT

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

 

   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

  $24,000 $24,000

   $0

   $0

   $0

   $0

 $0
$0 $0 $24,000 $24,000

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

  $12,000 $12,000

  $12,000 $12,000

  $0
$0 $0 $24,000 $24,000

Initial cp Date 9/19/2017

Fire Department General Funds (Budgeted)

 
TOTAL

The City does not anticipate additional costs associated with this project.  This grant provides funds which offset cost 
of hours spent on emergency planning and operations.  The $12,000 match will come from in-kind personnel costs.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

Alaska Department of Homeland Security (Federal Funds)

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
PROJECTS:

Personnel Wages & Benefits 

 

 

 

 

 
TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 124 of 144



  Introduced by:  Mayor Jim Matherly 
 Introduced:  September 25, 2017 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4811 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO ACCEPT 
FUNDS FROM THE ALASKA DIVISION OF HOMELAND SECURITY FOR 

THE FFY2017 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks has been notified by the Alaska Division of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management that the City of Fairbanks was 
awarded State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) funds to enhance resilience, 
absorb disruptions, and recover from incidents, both man-made and natural; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks was awarded $135,000 to purchase mobile 

(vehicle) radios, $69,020 to purchase extrication equipment, $62,500 to purchase and 
install security devices at fire stations, $6,000 for an area-wide earthquake exercise, 
$14,000 for Supervising Patrol Critical Incidents Training, and $10,650 for 2019 Alaska 
Shield Exercise Travel; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is not required to provide a match. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or 

his designee is authorized to execute any and all documents required for accepting 
funds on behalf of the City for this grant. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 25th Day of September 2017. 

 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:     
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 125 of 144



 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4811

Abbreviated Title: FFY2017 HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION ACCEPTANCE

Department(s): FIRE & POLICE DEPARTMENTS

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

 

   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

$135,000   $135,000

$69,020   $69,020

$62,500   $62,500

  $6,000 $6,000

 $14,000  $14,000

$10,650 $10,650
$266,520 $24,650 $6,000 $297,170

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

$266,520 $24,650 $6,000 $297,170

   $0

  $0
$266,520 $24,650 $6,000 $297,170

Initial cp Date 9/19/2017

 

 
TOTAL

The City of Fairbanks estmates that maintenance costs associated with the radios will decrease due to removal of 
old equipment.  The maintenance costs for the Extrication Tools should remain the same as this is a replacement of 
old equipment not additional equipment.  These costs will be absorbed through the general fund. The maintenance 
costs for the Security Upgrades have not been determined, but will be absorbed through the general fund budget.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

Alaska Department of Homeland Security (Federal Funds)

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
PROJECTS:

Land Mobile System Vehicle Mobile Radios (Police)

Extrication Tools (Fire)

Security Access Upgrade (Fire)

Area-Wide Earthquake Full Scale Exercise (Fire & Police)

Supervising Patrol Critical Incidents Training (Police)

Alaska Shield 2019 Exercise - Travel
TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 126 of 144



Introduced by: Mayor Matherly and 
Council Member Bagwill 

Date:  September 25, 2017 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6062 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL 
CODE SEC. 2-119 ORDER OF BUSINESS; SEC. 2-121 
SPEAKING, RECOGNITION; AND SEC. 2-122 VOTING 

 
 WHEREAS, FGC Sec. 2-119 relating to the order of business for City Council 
meetings has been amended from time to time; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the current order, which places citizens’ comments and council 
members’ comments at opposite ends of the agenda, has at times proven to hinder the 
flow of information between the council and citizens attending the meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the official business of council and citizens in attendance to testify 
regarding that business should be given priority; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the language of FGC Sec. 2-121 and 2-122 need to be updated. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  That FGC Sec. 2-119, Order of business; citizens addressing city council is 
hereby amended as follows [new text in underlined bold font; deleted text in strikethrough 
font]: 
 

Sec. 2-119.  Order of business; citizens addressing city council.  
 
  (a) At every regular meeting of the city council, the order of business shall be as 
follows:  
 

(1) Roll call.  
(2) Invocation.  
(3) Flag salutation.  

(4) Ceremonial matters (proclamations, introductions, recognitions, 
and awards) 

(54) Citizens' comments on consent agenda items, oral communication 
to the city council on any item not up for public hearing (unscheduled; 
testimony limited to five minutes per topic)(testimony limited to five 
minutes).  

(65) Approval of agenda and consent agenda. (Approval of consent 
agenda passes all routine items indicated by asterisk (*) on the 
agenda. Consent agenda items are not considered separately unless 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 127 of 144



Ordinance No. 6062 
Page 2 

a councilmember so requests. In the event of such request, the item 
is returned to the general agenda).  

(76) Approval of minutes of previous meetings.  

(87) Special orders (testimony limited to five minutes).  

(98) Mayor's comments and report.  

(109) Unfinished business (testimony limited to five minutes).  

(1110) New business.  

(1211) Discussion items (information and reports).  

(1312) Written communication to the city council.  

(14) Citizens’ comments, oral communications to the city council on 
any item not up for public hearing (unscheduled; testimony 
limited to five minutes). 

(153) Council members' comments.  

(164) City clerk's report.  

(175) City attorney's report.  

(18) Executive Session (if necessary) 
(196) Adjournment.  
 

  (b) Any person who desires to raise any matter not on the agenda shall be heard 
under citizens' comments, oral communications to the city council on any item 
not up for public hearingoral communications to city council on nonagenda items 
or councilmember comments. Any councilmember who desires to raise any matter 
not on the agenda shall be heard under citizens' comments, oral communications to 
the city council on nonagenda items or council members’ comments. After such a 
matter has been raised and fully presented no further debate or action shall be 
taken by the city council except by unanimous consent, but the matter may be 
referred or may be ordered placed on the agenda for a future conference session, 
special or regular city council meeting.  
 
  (c) Any person may raise any matter by a written communication to the city council 
through the city clerk.  If a council member deems the matter an appropriate 
agenda item, they may request that the item, which matter shall be placed on the 
agenda for the next city council meeting for which the agenda has not been closed. 
Any councilmember may raise any matter by requesting the city clerk to place such 
matter on the agenda for the next city council meeting for which the agenda has not 
been closed.  
 
  (d) Any subject may, by motion of the city council or direction of the mayor, be 
made a special order of business for a future day or a future time; and when the 
time fixed for its consideration arrives, the mayor presiding officer shall lay it before 
the city council.  

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 128 of 144



Ordinance No. 6062 
Page 3 

 
  (e) Persons not members of the city council may be permitted to address the city 
council by leave of the mayor presiding officer or of the city council at any time on 
any matter before the city council at public hearings.  
 
  (f) The rules of section 2-120 and section 2-121 shall be applicable to persons 
addressing the city council.  
 
  (g) Prior to any public hearing held by the city council, theThe mayor presiding 
officer or any council member may request a staff report at any time regarding the 
subject of the public hearing at which time staff will provide information on the topic 
and respond to questions posed by councilmembers.  
 

Section 2.  That FGC Sec. 2-121, Speaking; recognition; germaine; interruption; limitation, 
is hereby amended as follows [new text in underlined bold font; deleted text in 
strikethrough font]: 
 

 
Sec. 2-121.  Speaking; recognition; germanegermaine; interruption; limitation.  
 
  (a) A member about to speak shall respectfully address the chair, and shall not 
commence to speak until recognized by the mayor presiding officer. When two or 
more members request to speak at the same time, the mayor presiding officer shall 
determine which one is recognized.  
 
  (b) Every member whileWhile speaking, members shall confine themselves 
himself to the subject under debate, shall refrain from personalities, and shall not 
refer to any other member of the city council except in a respectful manner.  
 
  (c) Unless a member who has the floor yields for that purpose, no member shall 
interrupt another while speaking, except to propound a parliamentary inquiry or 
make a point of order.  
 
  (d) No member shall speak more than twice or for more than ten minutes 
continuously to any one question, except that one or more additional periods of ten 
minutes may be granted by unanimous consent. The reading of papers desired by 
any member shall be read by the member himself or by the city clerk within the 
member's time limitation unless permission for the city clerk to read such paper 
outside the time limitation is unanimously granted.  

 
Section 3.  That FGC Sec. 2-122, Voting, is hereby amended as follows [new text in 
underlined bold font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 
 

Sec. 2-122.  Voting.  
 
  (a) The mayor presiding officer shall declare all votes; but if any member doubts a 
vote, the mayor presiding officer, without further debate upon the question, shall 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 129 of 144



Ordinance No. 6062 
Page 4 

request the members voting in the affirmative and negative respectively to so 
indicate, and he shall declare the result.  
 
  (b) In all meetings of the city council, the vote shall be taken by yeas and nays on 
the passage of all ordinances, resolutions and authorizations for the payment of 
money, and on the passage of any motion when called for by any member of the 
city council; and such yea and nay votes of each member shall be permanently 
entered on the record of the proceedings of the city council by the city clerk. Other 
votes may be by voice or show of hands.  
 
  (c) Every member who shall be present when a question is put, where he is not 
disqualified by personal interest, shall vote, unless the city council for special reason 
excuses the memberhim. Applications to be so excused may be made before the 
vote, and shall be decided without debate.  
 
  (d) Anything to the contrary in this division notwithstanding, in all cases where an 
extraordinary majority is not required, and when no motion is before the city council, 
the mayor chairman may, in lieu of calling for or awaiting a motion to be made, put 
the question in the following form: "Without objection, it will be so ordered." If no 
objection is heard, the mayor he shall announce: "It is so ordered," which will have 
the same effect as if a motion to that effect had been made and voted upon 
favorably. If a single objection is reasonably expressed when the question is put, the 
mayor chairman shall not proceed further under this rule, but instead shall call for a 
motion, which motion shall be handled in the regular manner.  

 
Section 4.  That the effective date of this Ordinance is October ___, 2017. 
 
. 
 
       _____________________________ 
       JIM MATHERLY, Mayor 
 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 130 of 144



FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH/CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
CHENA RIVERFRONT COMMISSION 

 
MINUTES 

July 12, 2017 
 

A regular meeting of the Fairbanks North Star Borough/City of Fairbanks Chena Riverfront 
Commission was held in the Ester Conference Room, Juanita Helms Administration Center, 907 
Terminal Street, Fairbanks, Alaska. The meeting was called to order at 12:03 p.m. by Ian Olson, 
Chairperson. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ben Jaffa  Julie Jones 
     Ian Olson  Lee Wood 
     Anna Plager 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Bob Henszey  Kelley Hegarty Lammers 
     Carrie McEnteer Susan Rainey  
     Gordon Schlosser Buki Wright 
     
OTHERS PRESENT:   Andrew Ackerman, City of Fairbanks 
     Joe Kemp, DOT&PF 

Nancy Durham, FNSB Floodplain Administrator 
     Brittany Smart, FNSB Mayor’s Office 
     Kellen Spillman, FNSB CP Deputy Director 
     Brian Charlton, FNSB Parks & Recreation 
     Ann Worhatch, FNSB Public Works 
     Laura McLean, FNSB Recording Clerk 
     Nicole Nordstrand, FNSB Recording Clerk 
 
A. ROLL CALL 
 

Mr. Olson declared the lack of a quorum and indicated that the meeting would proceed for 
discussion purposes only with no action being taken. 
 

B. * APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by asterisk (*) on agenda. 
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless any Commission member or 
citizen so requests. In the event of such request, the item is returned to the general agenda. 

 
C. MINUTES 

 
1. *Minutes from June 14, 2017 meeting. 

 
Ms. Plager commented she liked the new format of the meeting minutes being simple 
and straightforward without trying to capture every word exchange. 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 131 of 144



Approved CRFC Meeting Minutes  2 | P a g e  
July 12, 2017 

 

D. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COMMISSION 
 
Mr. Spillman introduced Nicole Nordstrand as a new Administrative Assistant in the 
Community Planning Department and announced she will be the new Clerk for the Chena 
Riverfront Commission. 
 

E. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Recommendation on Ordinance 2017-46; Responsibilities of the Chena Riverfront 
Commission 

 
Mr. Spillman introduced Ordinance No. 2017-46 to the Commission and provided a line-
by-line explanation of the ordinance; describing the development of the whereas 
clauses, noted responsibilities and processes, and provided examples of how the 
changes impact the Commission’s role in future projects involving the Chena River. 

 
Ms. Wood questioned whether the ordinance would change the existing process.  Mr. 
Spillman clarified that the Rule 16 process will essentially remain the same, but have to 
be rewritten for quasi-judicial matters. 
 
Mr. Spillman resumed his presentation of the ordinance.  Discussion followed about 
various clauses in the ordinance and their intended purpose.  Mr. Spillman offered 
clarification on interpretation and drew attention to FNSBC 4.32.070. 
 
Ms. Plager expressed concern on the application process and the lack of the 
Commissions ability to meet with the applicant before making decisions.  Mr. Spillman 
explained the constraints on the application process from Community Planning’s 
perspective and indicated that an official process could be developed in the Chena 
Riverfront Commission Rules.   
 
Mr. Spillman communicated that the deadline to the Assembly for recommendation by 
this Commission is July 19, 2017, and since a quorum does not exist for this 
Commission to take action, any Commissioners may appear before the Planning 
Commission and testify as an individual.  Discussion ensued about the process of 
forwarding the ordinance, the lack of quorum, and what action could be taken or not 
taken. 
 
Ms. Wood noted her objection to including the rezone of Ice Alaska in the “Whereas 
Clauses”, and requested that it be removed.  Mr. Jaffa noted he does not necessarily 
see that just because the Commission’s recommendations were not followed, correlates 
to the Commissions role not being important and feels it does not necessarily need to be 
struck.  Further discussion ensued about not including an example in the clause and 
historical matters appearing before the Assembly and the influential role of the 
Commission.   
 
It was determined that if someone feels strongly on the ordinance, anyone may appear 
before the Planning Commission and give testimony as an individual. 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 132 of 144



Approved CRFC Meeting Minutes  3 | P a g e  
July 12, 2017 

 

2. Subcommittees and the Open Meetings Act 
 

Mr. Spillman directed attention to the memorandum from the Borough Attorney 
concerning what constitutes a subcommittee and public notification of meetings.  He 
further drew attention to the examples set forth in the memorandum from Jill Dolan.   
 
Discussion ensued about examples on the number of people present at various types of 
meetings, what authorities are given or recommendations sought, and whether or not 
official public notice must be given.     

 
Reference Ordinance No. 2017-46 Item 1 above – Ms. Jones reported that she just 
received a phone call from the City of Fairbanks’ Council Clerk reporting that the City 
Council heard the matter of the Chena Riverfront Commission Ordinance and while 
some Councilmembers had questions, Ms. Smart was present and answered the 
questions. 

 
3. Potential Field Trip in August 

 
Mr. Olson reported he had explored with Ms. McEnteer using Fort Wainwright 
equipment to have a river trip, which isn’t possible.  Ms. McEnteer did invite the 
Commission to do a streambank restoration project review field trip.  The majority of 
Commissioners present expressed interest for a field trip. 
 
Discussion ensued about the logistics and it was agreed that the Community Planning 
Department would make the necessary arrangements and handle the public notice and 
accommodations.   
 

4. DOT project on Airport Way West Update 
 
Mr. Kemp indicated that there have been very little changes and no new updates, that 
the design phase is still being worked.  He indicated he would talk to Carl Heim about 
coming to the September meeting to provide an overall project overview with a visual 
presentation.   
 
Mr. Ackerman indicated discussions occurring on options of long-term potential 
landscaping. 
 

5. Presentation on Ruth Burnett Fish Hatchery  
 

As Mr. Olson noted earlier, this matter is moved to the October 11, 2017 meeting. 
 
F. OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Review of CRFC Project List 
 
Mr. Olson communicated that there will be a standing item on the project list for tracking 
purposes, further discussion, etc. 
 

2. Potential January Meeting – Lee Wood 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 133 of 144



Approved CRFC Meeting Minutes  4 | P a g e  
July 12, 2017 

 

Mr. Olson reported that traditionally there has not been a meeting held in January, but 
given potential need for action, it might be necessary to hold a meeting in January.  
 
Ms. Wood reported that with the 24-day response in the new ordinance, it could create 
problems not holding a meeting in January. 
 
Mr. Spillman commented that nothing in the rules precludes a January meeting from 
being held or scheduled and canceled if later not needed.   
 

3. Update on DOT Project on University Avenue at Chena River Bridge 
 

Mr. Jaffa reported on his and Ms. Schlosser’s meeting with DOT & PF, the City of 
Fairbanks, and FNSB concerning the bank stabilization, potential sale of the property, 
and the reseeding or other ideas concerning the parcel of property on University Avenue 
at Chena River Bridge. 
 
Discussion ensued about the potential sale of the adjacent property, future involvement 
of the Commission with any potential new owner, and how it gets developed.  Mr. 
Spillman advised that if the property is sold to a private owner, the Planning 
Commission and Assembly could set conditions of a waterway setback if the 
Commission wishes to make that recommendation.  Ms. Plager announced she will do 
some research on the potential sale/development and report back in September. 

 
G. EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
 Mr. Olson communicated during roll call that Mr. Schlosser’s, Mr. Wright’s, and Mr. 

Henszey’s absences were excused. 
 
H. STAFF AND LIAISON COMMENTS 
 

Ms. Durham announced that on August 15th at 6:00 p.m. a Commemoration of the 50th 
Annual 1967 Flood will be held in Golden Heart Plaza. 
 
Mr. Spillman communicated that his department is committed to helping the Commission do 
its business, and if a special meeting is necessary, per the new interpretation on the Open 
Meetings Act, the Department will do what is necessary to advertise.  
 
Ms. Worhatch spoke, but her comments were inaudible. 
 
Mr. Charlton reported on his first meeting of the Green Infrastructure Group. 
 

I. COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS 
 
 Ms. Plager thanked Mr. Spillman for his support, and Mr. Jaffa and Mr. Schlosser for 

meeting with DOT. 
 
 Ms. Jones dittoed Ms. Plager’s remarks and also mentioned that the Flood of 1967 was 

instrumental in getting legislation for flood insurance nationwide. 
 
 Ms. Plager welcomed Ms. Nordstand and thanked Ms. McLean for her service to the 

Commission.   

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 134 of 144



Approved CRFC Meeting Minutes  5 | P a g e  
July 12, 2017 

 

J. AGENDA SETTING FOR SEPTEMBER 13, 2017 MEETING 
 

1. Presentation by Carl Heim on Airport Way West DOT project. 
2. Update from Ms. Plager on University Avenue at Chena River Bridge. 
3. Potential Modification of Chena Riverfront Commission Rule 16. 

 
Ms. Plager suggested inviting Mayor Kassel to the September meeting on the adoption 
of Ordinance Rule 2017-46. 

 
Mr. Spillman suggested inviting Lauren Little from DOT concerning the University 
Avenue at Chena River Bridge project. 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:37 p.m. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 135 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 136 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 137 of 144



BOARD/COMMISSION
CHARACTERISTICS

The Board of Plumber Examiners shall consist of five members, at least three
members of the board shall be residents of the City, each member shall serve a
three-year term. The members shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to
confirmation by the City Council. The chairman shall be elected by the Board of
Examiners subject to approval by the City Council, and shall serve in this capacity
for one year. The City Building Official shall be a non-voting, ex officio member of
the board and shall act as secretary.

MEETINGS The Board of Plumber Examiners shall meet at least once each quarter and all
meetings shall be open to the public. The chairman in his discretion is authorized
to call special meetings, or a majority of the members may require a special
meeting to be called. A majority of the board shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business, and three affirmative votes shall be necessary to carry
any question. Permanent records, or minutes, shall be kept. The minutes shall
promptly be filed in the Office of the City Clerk and shall be open to inspection by
any person.

Meeting Minutes

ENACTING LEGISLATION FGC 2-306 through 2-309

ENACTING LEGISLATION
WEBSITE

http://bit.ly/1sG9Rfd

JOINT COMMISSION DETAILS N/A

EMAIL THE COMMISSION
MEMBERS

boardofplumberexaminers@fairbanks.us

DETAILS

City of Fairbanks, Alaska

BOARD OF PLUMBER EXAMINERS

BOARD DETAILS

OVERVIEW

SIZE  6 Seats

TERM LENGTH  3 Years

TERM LIMIT  N/A

The Board of Plumber Examiners is
empowered to perform the duties as
prescribed in Sections 2-306 through 2-
309, as well as Sections 14-291 through
14-301 of the Fairbanks General Code
(FGC).

Board of Plumber Examiners Page 1 of 1City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 138 of 144

http://www.fairbanksalaska.us/boards-commissions-minutes/


Submit Date: May 22, 2017

First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Job Title

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Profile

Mailing Address

Are you a City of Fairbanks resident? *

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Board of Plumber Examiners: On Agenda 

Interests and Experiences

Why are you interested in serving on a City board or commission? What experiences can
you contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

Please provide a brief personal biography in the space below, or attach a resume.

Mike Desmond

Fairbanks AK

Western Mechanical, Inc. President

Mike Desmond Page 1 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 139 of 144



Upload a Resume

List any professional licenses or training you believe are relevant to the seat you are
applying for.

Mike Desmond Page 2 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 140 of 144



Submit Date: May 22, 2017

First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Job Title

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Profile

Mailing Address

Are you a City of Fairbanks resident? *

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Board of Plumber Examiners: On Agenda 

Interests and Experiences

Why are you interested in serving on a City board or commission? What experiences can
you contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

Please provide a brief personal biography in the space below, or attach a resume.

Dan Portwine

Fairbanks AK

Portwine Plumbing & Heating President

Dan Portwine Page 1 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 141 of 144



Upload a Resume

List any professional licenses or training you believe are relevant to the seat you are
applying for.

Dan Portwine Page 2 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 142 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 143 of 144



City Council Agenda Packet - September 25, 2017 144 of 144


	AGENDA - September 25, 2017
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Marijuana License Renewal - Green Life Supply, LLC
	New Marijuana Retail Store License - Green Life Supply, LLC

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 6060
	Ordinance No. 6060, as Amended (Proposed Substitute A)
	Ordinance No. 6060, as Amended (Proposed Substitute B)
	Ordinance No. 6061

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4808
	Resolution No. 4809
	Resolution No. 4810
	Resolution No. 4811
	Ordinance No. 6062

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes - 07/12/17
	Board of Plumber Examiner Meeting Minutes - 06/20/17
	Reappointments to the Board of Plumber Examiners

	CITY CLERK'S REPORT
	Approval of 2017 Municipal Election Judges




